
1 
 

Borough of Tenafly 
 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2012 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Peter Rustin and Council members Anthony Barzelatto, Barry 
Honig, Martha Kerge, Nadia LaMastra, Jon Warms, and Mark Zinna 

 
ABSENT:        Councilmember Jon Warms 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   Chief Financial Officer/Acting Borough Administrator Gene Vinci 

Borough Attorney William R. McClure 
 

At 7:58 p.m. Mayor Rustin read the Open Public Meetings Act Statement: “In compliance 
with the Open Public Meetings Act P.L. 1975, chapter 231, the notice requirements have 
been satisfied. Meeting dates for the year are listed in the Annual Agenda; copies are sent to 
the Record, Suburbanite, and Northern Valley News and posted on the bulletin board in the 
lobby of the Municipal Center.” 
 
The Salute to the Flag was led by Mayor Peter Rustin. 
 
REVISIONS TO AGENDA: 
 
Borough Attorney McClure advised that Council has decided to amend Resolution #R12-52/ 
Confirm Appointment of Plumbing Sub-Code Official, but it is remaining on the Consent 
Agenda.  

 
PRESENTATIONS -  
 

o Oath of Office to Police Officer Matthew Savitsky and Officer Brandon Moriarty 
 

Mayor Rustin stated that he considers being selected to join the Tenafly Police Department 
to be quite an honor as this police force is highly respected throughout Bergen County and 
New Jersey. He expressed his opinion that the Tenafly residents are fortunate to have this 
group looking after them. He stated that he has 100% confidence in the selection process.  
 
Mayor Rustin advised that Police Officer Matthew Savitsky is a resident of Westwood. He 
attended Northern Valley Regional High School in Demarest and graduated from Fordham 
University with a BA in Sociology. He enlisted in the US Army Reserve in 2007, achieving 
the rank of 1st Lieutenant in the 404th Civil Affairs Battalion. He has served as a Class II 
Police Officer in the Borough of Demarest since 2009 and graduated from the Passaic 
County Police Academy in 2010. 
 
Mayor Rustin then stated that Police Officer Brandon Moriarty is a resident of Ridgefield 
Park. He attended Ridgefield Park High School and then Quinnipiac University where he 
graduated with two degrees in four years; one BA in Criminal Justice and the other in 
English. He completed police-related internships with the Connecticut State Attorney’s 
Office and the State Director of Police Training and Education. He was awarded the Passaic 
County Law Enforcement Foundation Scholarship and put himself through the Passaic 
County Police Academy. 
 
Mayor Rustin wished the two new officers long, successful, and enjoyable careers. He also 
thanked their families for lending them to Tenafly. 
 
Borough Attorney McClure administered the Oath of Office to Police Officer Matthew 
Savitsky. 
 
Borough Attorney McClure administered the Oath of Office to Police Officer Brandon 
Moriarty. 

 
o Recognition of TVAC members 

 
Mayor Rustin commented that all three organizations, Police, Fire, and Ambulance, work 
together with a tremendous level of cooperation.  



2 
 

 
C. LaMastra, Council Liaison to TVAC, stated that Tenafly is very fortunate to have a 
Volunteer Ambulance Corps that is fully staffed. She advised that TVAC answers over 1,000 
calls every year. She then recognized Captain Max Moehlen, Lieutenant of Operations Mark 
Eisenberg, Lieutenant of Training Jasper Basch, Lieutenant of Readiness Josh Bedrosian, 
President Cheryl Reynolds, Vice President Maria Stratigis, Treasurer Julie Finkel, and 
Secretary Ziev Basson. C. LaMastra expressed her opinion that Tenafly’s Volunteer 
Ambulance Corps is second to none and thanked the members for their service. 
 
AUDIENCE REMARKS FOR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. #R12-40/Approve Expenditures as of January 11, 2012. 
B. #R12-41/Authorize Refund/ Trust Account PB#1-10-11/Emco Realty Corp. 
C. #R12-42/Authorize Refund/Construction Permits/Nautilus Swimming Pools 
 Supplies & Service. 
D. #R12-43/Authorize Refund/ Trust Account PB#1-10-24/Alois J. Rupp. 
E. #R12-44/Confirm Appointment to the Library Board of Trustees. 
F. #R12-45/Authorize Return of General Letter of Credit and Refund/Trust   

Account PB#1-10-04 and Trust Account #00051/Jeanne K. Swift. 
G. #R12-46/Execute Agreement/2012 Animal Control Services. 
H. #R12-47/Confirm Presidential Election Day Compensation. 
I. #R12-48/Authorize Refund/New Construction and Soil Moving /S&D Developers, 

LLC/54 Sunderland Road. 
J. #R12-49/Authorize Refund/Tree Mitigation Escrow/8 Woodhill Road. 
K. #R12-50/Authorize Refund/Tree Mitigation Escrow/42 Kent Road. 
L. #R12-51/Authorize Refund/Tree Mitigation Escrow/286 Tenafly Road. 
M. #R12-52/Confirm Appointment of Plumbing Sub-Code Official. 
N. #R12-53/Add Special Closed Session Meeting/January 31, 2012. 
O. #R12-54/Authorize Refund/Tree Mitigation Escrow/27 Brook Road. 
P. #R12-55/Authorize Permission for a Temporary Storage Trailer/Lubavitch on the
 Palisades. 
Q. #R12-56/Authorize Refund/Various Escrows/11 Harold Street. 
R. #R12-57/Authorize Refund/Engineering Escrow/52 Churchill Road. 
S. #R12-58/Authorize Refund/Tax Overpayments/Tax Court Judgment. 
T. #R12-59/Authorize Refund/2010-2011 Omitted/Added Assessment Taxes. 
 
Motion by C. LaMastra second by C. Kerge that the Consent Agenda be approved as 
amended. 
 
On a roll call, the vote on the Consent Agenda was recorded as follows: 
 

C. Barzelatto:   aye   C. LaMastra:   aye 
C. Honig:         aye   C. Warms:         absent 
C. Kerge:         aye   C. Zinna:      aye 

 
All members present voting in favor, the Consent Agenda was approved as amended. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
Councilman Honig  Mr. Honig advised that the ADA Committee will 

meet tomorrow night.  
 
 Joint Use met and decided that the Board of 

Education and Borough of Tenafly will jointly pay 
for a generator. He explained that this generator 
will allow Borough Hall and the Police Department 
to be fully functional during power outages. He 
advised that a study will come in shortly and the 
generator is estimated to be installed by the 
summer. Mr. Honig stated that the use of open 
space funds to install turf at Geisinger Field was 
also discussed. He explained that there are legal 
and usage details that need to be worked out and 
the Borough is waiting for a proposal from the 
Board of Education. 



3 
 

 
Councilman Barzelatto No report. 
 
Mayor Rustin Mayor Rustin advised that the Planning Board had 

its Reorganization Meeting and Mary Beth Wilmit 
will continue as Chair, Gus Allen as Vice Chair, Joe 
Burgis as Planner, and Jeff Zenn as Attorney. He 
explained that the Engineer position was left open 
until the next meeting as David Hals did not attend 
the Reorganization Meeting. He stated that a major 
soil moving application on Deerfield Drive will be 
heard at the next meeting. 

 
C. LaMastra questioned whether there was the possibility that the Planning Board will 
appoint the Borough Engineer, Andrew Hipolit, as the Planning Board Engineer. Mayor 
Rustin explained that David Hals has served the Planning Board well and having him serve 
is less of a financial burden. C. LaMastra responded that the employees are very happy with 
Mr. Hipolit and the Planning Board may want to consider a change for this year. Mayor 
Rustin stated that he would bring her comments to the board.  
 
Councilwoman LaMastra Ms. LaMastra reported that Matthew Mercurio, the 

new Recreation Director, attended his first 
Recreation Board meeting and it went very well. She 
advised that there are a number of permit 
applications for use of the fields and Mr. Mercurio 
is to reach out to the various groups to work out 
schedules. He will also be initiating a meeting with 
the heads of the different sports groups to 
determine an equitable use of the fields. She 
advised that there will be presentations made to the 
Recreation Board regarding new programming. 

 
 The Senior Center had a luncheon for homebound 

seniors and it was very successful. She advised that 
this group did not want to be referred to as 
homebound and commented that the Senior Center 
has to be careful about outreach. She stated that 
they are deciding how many times a year they 
would like to have this programming. 

 
The Welcome Committee held their annual start-of-
year bookmaking session which entails two to three 
hours of compiling books and reaching out to 
businesses for coupons and donations. Ms. 
LaMastra commented that the Welcome Packet is a 
wonderful resource for new residents. 

 
Mayor Rustin  Mayor Rustin advised that Recreation received 

notification that the Tenafly Middle School may be 
replacing their roof, potentially creating the need to 
move summer camp.  

 
 He announced that on January 25th, there will be a 

public hearing on the reexamination of the Master 
Plan. He advised that any comments or questions 
should be given to Dee Lorberbaum, Muncipal Land 
Use Administrator, within the next week.  

 
C. Honig questioned whether there was an update on the Municipal Field Restroom and 
Concession Stand Project. Mayor Rustin responded that he attended a meeting with Dave 
Hals, Bob Byrnes, Tom Swift, and Matthew Mercurio. He reported that the property had 
been staked out and the utility marking should be completed tomorrow. He further advised 
that the DPW will dig the trenches for the pad and at the suggestion of Bob Byrnes, the 
footings and pad will be poured at the same time. C. Honig expressed his concern over the 
Borough Administrator not scheduling meetings sooner to facilitate the process. Mayor 
Rustin asked that this discussion take place when the Borough Administrator is present. C. 
LaMastra noted that at the next work session, there will be a discussion regarding the 
Borough Administrator’s goals and perhaps C. Honig can raise his concerns at that time.  



4 
 

 
Councilman Zinna Mr. Zinna advised that the Youth Advisory Board 

will be meeting on the last Wednesday of the 
month. 

 
Councilwoman Kerge Ms. Kerge reported that the Historic Preservation 

Commission met and discussed how the Light Rail 
might affect historic properties and buildings. She 
advised that they would like to make a presentation 
to the governing body about their new publication, 
Tenafly Design Guidelines for Landmarks and 
Historic Districts. There will be copies of this 
publication available in the Building Department 
and Tenafly Library. 

 
 The Library Board is busy reorganizing and Pat 

Rouse and Soon Juhng both had different but 
regular seats. She advised that they went into 
closed session for a large part of time. They also 
raised concerns over their ability to afford to 
purchase books and the difficulty of deciding 
whether to purchase hardback or electronic books. 
As electronic books are only available for a certain 
number of uses, the Library has to be careful about 
budgeting. 

 
 The Board of Adjustment officers remain the same. 

Ms. Kerge advised that they are without their 
regular attorney as he is ill and they have decided 
to work with an interim attorney at this time. She 
advised that there is one new member, Randy 
Babcock, who replaced Susan Crook. At the next 
meeting, Eliot Urdang will be presenting a plan for 
the Diasparra property and the Farley application 
regarding his garage will be heard.  

 
Transportation Committee: 
 
Mayor Rustin asked that Mark Gordon, Transportation Study Consultant, and Howard 
Seiden, Chair of the Transportation Committee, provide a report on the January 5th 
Transportation Committee Meeting. Mayor Rustin explained that the committee has worked 
with Mr. Gordon to put together a third draft of the Mayor and Council public hearing 
testimony.  Mayor Rustin suggested that one member of the governing body also read the 
letter previously sent to NJ Transit. He advised that people can register to speak on 
January 24th beginning at 3:00 p.m., there will be a separate sign-up sheet for elected 
officials, and NJ Transit will make a strong attempt to hear everyone. 
 
Mr. Gordon explained that a consensus testimony has been drafted and suggested that two 
members of the governing body read said testimony. He stated that Mayor Rustin can give a 
separate statement. Council decided to have C. Zinna attend the evening public hearings 
and read the letter previously submitted to NJ Transit. Mr. Seiden stressed the importance 
of these hearings and advised that he will attend the evening hearing on January 24th and 
both hearings on January 26th. Council decided to schedule a press conference at 1:45 p.m. 
on January 24th at Café Angelique. Council felt that holding the press conference at this 
location would show the effect of the Light Rail on the ambiance of downtown Tenafly. 
 
Mr. Seiden advised that Joe McDermott, member of the Transportation Committee, met 
with various grass root committees to discuss public relations and they will create flyers. 
Mr. Seiden also informed Council that the Transportation Committee submitted a letter to 
the Suburbanite to remind people to attend the hearings. 
 
C. Barzelatto commented that there needs to be care taken in how Tenafly expresses its 
opposition as there is support for the line ending in Englewood. Council agreed that it 
should be part of the message conveyed to the representatives in Trenton, Washington, and 
Hackensack that there is no opposition to the line terminating at Route 4. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 



5 
 

None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Recreation Department Independence Day Celebration 
 
Mayor Rustin advised that the Recreation Department Independence Day Celebration is 
scheduled for July 1, 2012 with a rain date of July 4th. He stated that he would like to have 
a more Americana band perform before the fireworks and he plans to put together a 
committee to raise funds for said performance. There was some discussion about the 
expense of having the fireworks take place on July 4th should the use of the rain date be 
necessary. Council decided that should it rain on July 1st, the fireworks will take place the 
evening of July 3rd and the festivities during the day on July 4th. 
 

B. Council Liaison for the Municipal Alliance 
 
C. LaMastra advised that the Municipal Alliance meets on the second Monday of the month. 
This group is comprised of parents, Sergeant Kopesky, and Dare Officers from Alpine and 
Englewood Cliffs. She noted that it is a Council grant that funds this group and as such, a 
member of Council needs to be appointed to attend. Council decided to appoint C. Zinna as 
the Council Liaison to the Municipal Alliance. 
 
AUDIENCE REMARKS FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Bernard Ellenson, 57 Oak Avenue, explained that he sent an email about proposed 
locations for a dog park. He advised that Roosevelt Commons is still the most ideal spot, 
but the Dog Park Committee would still be open to other locations including the oval area 
behind the Municipal Center, Walnut Park, and a strip of land on Tenakill Parkway 
perpendicular to Sunnyside Park. He suggested increasing the fee for registering a dog in 
order to finance the dog park. 
 
C. Honig commented that the proposal to increase fees for dog licensing is simply another 
form of hidden taxation. Mayor Rustin expressed his belief that the fee for dog licensing is 
set by State statute and Borough Clerk Aportela-Hernandez confirmed that this fee cannot 
be increased. Mr. Ellenson stated that the Committee may look into seeking private 
sponsorship by offering to have the sponsor’s name placed on park benches. 
 
MAYOR’S REMARKS: 
 
Mayor Rustin advised that there will be a Police Commission meeting tomorrow. He 
explained that Lt. Favre and Lt. Siegel are retiring as of February 1st primarily because of 
proposed changes to terminal leave. Although Chief Bruno will be making a presentation at 
Police Commission tomorrow, Mayor Rustin recommended authorizing Chief Bruno to start 
the search process this evening rather than waiting two additional weeks for the next 
Council meeting. He explained that according to CFO Vinci, the budget impact of hiring two 
new officers would still be a decrease of $180,000 excluding the cost for their benefits.  
 
C. Honig expressed his opinion that this situation does not constitute an emergency. Mayor 
Rustin responded that the Detective Bureau is overwhelmed with paperwork and there is a 
serious manpower issue. C. Barzelatto added that burglaries are on the rise and the lack of 
officers does have an impact. C. LaMastra stated that the Police Department has lost almost 
all of its senior members in the last six to eight months. She further advised that there is a 
long training period for new officers, causing a shortage in patrols. Mayor Rustin 
commented that the Traffic and Detective Bureaus are most affected as the priority is to 
staff patrols and there is a backlog in both divisions. He reminded Council that a few 
months prior, the consensus was to have 33 officers and as of February 1st, the department 
will be back down to 31 officers. C. Zinna remarked that if Council decided 33 officers was 
the right number, then rationally there is the need to hire 2 additional officers and Council 
should authorize Chief Bruno to start the process. C. Honig agreed that the increase in 
burglaries is of great concern as well as the recent attacks on synagogues, but expressed 
his opinion that, instead, modern technology should be explored, allowing for increased 
surveillance. He asked that there be a discussion on modern policing and better use of 
technology. Mayor Rusin responded that the new facility will be better equipped to handle 
new technology and this topic can be discussed during the budget meetings. C. Barzelatto 
pointed out that by the end of 2012, four more officers may retire, including Chief Bruno. 
Mayor Rustin stated that he agrees that improvements in technology should be 
investigated, but the Traffic and Detective Bureaus are suffering. C. Kerge remarked that if 



6 
 

the decision that Council made when finalizing the budget is correct, it is obvious that the 
two positions will need to be filled. 
 
Council agreed to have this discussion placed on the January 31st Work Session agenda. 
They also asked that Chief Bruno attend this meeting to present a proposal to Council. C. 
Honig asked that Chief Bruno bring data to give Council an understanding of the backlog 
and how it compares to last year. Mayor Rustin will ask for more specific data, but advised 
that Chief Bruno has already advised that overtime increased by 30% in 2011 and revenue 
dropped $76,000. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
On a motion from C. Kerge, second by C. LaMastra, and with all present voting in favor, the 
meeting was adjournment at 9:32 p.m.  

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 

Lissette Aportela-Hernandez, MPA, RMC 
       Borough Clerk 

 
 
 

 
 
 


